IN THE

SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 74,920

RICKEY BERNARD ROBERTS,

Appellant,

versus

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

LARRY HELM SPALDING Capital Collateral Representative Florida Bar No. 0125540

MARTIN J. McGLAIN THOMAS H. DUNN LINDA S. FELDMAN

OFFICE OF THE CAPITAL COLLATERAL REPRESENTATIVE

1533 South Monroe Street

Tallahassee, Florida 32301

(904) 487-4376

COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This proceeding involves the appeal of the circuit court's denial of Mr.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND PROCEDURAL HISTORY

On June 21, 1984, Mr. Roberts was charged by indictment with the first degree murder of George Napoles, sexual battery of Michelle Rimondi, and two counts of robbery and kidnapping of Michelle Rimondi. Mr. Roberts entered a plea of not guilty to the charges and was tried before a jury in December of 1985. After deliberating for twenty three (23) hours, the jury returned a verdict of guilty of first degree murder, sexual battery, and kidnapping.

The central issue at the trial was the credibility of Michelle Rimondi. She claimed that it was Rickey Roberts who killed Mr. Napoles and raped her, Ms. Rimondi at approximately 3:00 a.m. on June 4, 1984. Mr. Roberts testified in his own behalf and denied the charges, although admitting he had picked up a hitchhiking-Ms. Rimondi on the night on the murder. Mr. Roberts' defense was that Ms. Rimondi, a prostitute, and one or both of her male protectors killed Mr. Napoles, Ms. Rimondi's client, and then framed Mr. Roberts for the murder. However, the defense was precluded from presenting any evidence of Ms. Rimondi's sexual history because the trial court ruled that the Rape Shield Law prohibited its introduction. Even without this key information going towards Ms. Rimondi's motives to lie about her involvement in the murder and her relationship with the victim, the jury deliberated for twenty three (23) hours before convicting.

In the penalty phase of the trial, the court instructed the jury on several aggravating circumstances, but failed to include the appropriate qualifiers applicable to the various aggravating factors. The jury was also instructed regarding the statutory mental health mitigating factors. However, the jury was told that if the mental health mitigation did not rise to the statutory threshold level, only "other aspects" of Mr. Roberts character or background could be considered in mitigation. The trial was prior to the decision in Hitchcock v.

Dugger, 107 s. Ct. 1821 (1987), holding that a Florida sentencing jury must receive accurate and correct penalty phase instructions. After being erroneously instructed

and having deliberated, the jury, by a vote of seven to five (7-5), recommended that Mr. Roberts be sentenced to death for the first-degree murder conviction.

a

Prior to the sentencing hearing, the trial judge prepared his written findings as to the aggravating and mitigating circumstances surrounding the murder. At the conclusion of the sentencing, this order was entered. The aggravating circumstances found were as follows: (1) Mr. Roberts has previously been convicted of a violent felony; (2) Mr. Roberts was under sentence of imprisonment; (3) the murder was committed while Mr. Roberts was engaged in the crime of sexual battery; and (4) it was especially heinous, atrocious and cruel (R. 581-84). The court stated that it "has been unable to find anything about this offense or association with this defendant's to warrant mitigation" (R. 586). The court sentenced Defendant to death (R. 587).

On appeal this Court affirmed Mr. Roberts' conviction and sentence of death.

Roberts v. State, 510 So. 2d 885 (Fla. 1987). On August 29, 1989, the Governor of

Florida signed a death warrant setting Mr. Roberts' execution for Tuesday, October

31, 1989. On September 28, 1989, Mr. Roberts timely filed his Rule 3.850 motion.

On October 19, 1989, Mr. Roberts supplemented his motion to vacate. A status

hearing was conducted on October 25, 1989. At that hearing the court ruled that Mr.

Roberts' supplementation was proper, but concluded that the motion to vacate should

be summarily denied. A notice of appeal was promptly filed. Thereafter, this Court

stayed Mr. Roberts' execution.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

I. Olden v. Kentucky, 109 s. Ct. 480 (1989), effectively overruled this Court's decision in Mr. Roberts' direct appeal. Under Olden, Mr. Roberts was denied his sixth amendment right to cross-examine the State's witness, Ms. Rimondi. as to her prostitution, which was material as to her motives to lie. Ms. Roberts' defense was that either Ms. Rimondi or her male protectors committed the murder and framed Mr. Roberts. Since the jury deliberated for twenty-three hours without knowing of

- Ms. Rimondi's prostitution, the limitation upon the cross-examination cannot be found to be harmless beyond a reasonable doubt, and a reversal is required.
- 11. Rock v. Arkansas, 107 S. Ct. 2407 (1987); Taylor v. Illinois, 108 S. Ct. 646 (1988); and Olden v. Kentucky, 109 S. Ct. 480 (1989), effectively overruled this Court's decision on direct appeal upholding the trial court's limitation on Mr. Roberts' ability to testify in his own behalf. Under these new decisions, Mr. Roberts was denied his constitutional right to testify in his own behalf and present relevant and material evidence. The exclusion of Mr. Roberts' testimony, that Ms. Rimondi told him that she was a prostitute, cannot be held to be harmless beyond a reasonable doubt since Ms. Rimondi's prostitution gave rise to a motive for her or her male protectors to have killed Mr. Napoles, her client.
- 111. The State violated Rule 3.220 of the Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure and <u>Brady v. Marvland</u>, 373 U.S. **83** (1967), by withholding statements and evidence which were exculpatory. Under <u>Roman v. State</u>, 528 **So.** 2d 1129 (Fla. 1986), a reversal is required because the error was not harmless beyond a reasonable doubt.
- IV. <u>Pennsylvania v. Ritchie</u> is new case law which establishes that an in camera proceeding must be held in order to ascertain what exculpatory evidence Ms. Rimondi provided her rape counselor, an employee of the state attorney's office.
- V. Mr. Roberts was deprived of effective assistance of counsel at the penalty phase of his capital trial by virtue of counsel's failure to investigate, develop and present mitigating evidence of Mr. Roberts' background and history. Mr. Roberts was prejudiced because the sentencing jury which recommended death by a vote of seven to five did not know of the substantial mitigation in Mr. Roberts' background and how the background corroborated the opinions of the mental health experts.
- VI. Mr. Roberts was deprived of the effective assistance of counsel at the guilt-innocence phase of his capital trial. Counsel neglected for no tactical reasons to develop and present impeachment evidence. Further, counsel was rendered ineffective by several of the trial court's rulings.

- VII. Mr. Roberts was denied his right of confrontation when the court limited cross-examination into pending charges against the State's witnesses. Mr. Roberts was denied the effective assistance of appellate counsel when counsel failed to raise this issue on appeal, and as a result, deprived Mr. Roberts of the reversal to which he was entitled to by virtue of the constitutional error.
- VIII. Mr. Roberts was denied his right to trial by a jury that presumed him innocent when the State repeatedly referred to him by an alias. Mr. Roberts received ineffective assistance of appellate counsel when this issue was not raised on direct appeal.
- IX. New case law establishes that this Court erred on direct appeal and that Mr. Roberts' sentence of death is unreliable because the sentencers did not know to consider mental health mitigation not rising to the statutory threshhold as nonstaturory mitigation within the meaning of "any other aspect of the defendant's character."
- X. Mr. Roberts' sentencing jury was not adequately instructed regarding the meaning of heinous, atrocious, or cruel. This violated the eighth amendment under Maynard v. Cartwrieht, 108 S. Ct. 1853 (1988), and Hitchcock v. Dugger, 107 S. Ct. 1821 (1987), new case law which is cognizable in collateral proceedings.
- XI. Mr. Roberts' sentencing jury was incorrectly instructed that in order to recommend a life sentence, the jury had to find that the mitigating circumstances outweighed the aggravating circumstances. This claim is cognizable because of a change in law. Mills v. Maryland, 108 S. Ct. 1860 (1988), and Penry v. Lynaugh, 109 S. Ct. 2934 (1989).
- XII. The jury in Mr. Roberts' case was improperly led to believe that they could not consider sympathy for Mr. Roberts in determining the sentence. This was in violation of the eighth amendment and the principles set forth in <u>Penry V. Lynaugh</u>, 109 S. Ct. 2934 (1989).
 - XIII. Under Maynard v. Cartwrinht, supra, and Hitchcock v. Dugger, supra,

changes in the law, Mr. Roberts' jury was not adequately instructed regarding the aggravating circumstance of "in the course of a felony."

a

XIV. Mr. Roberts' jury was not adequately instructed regarding the weight of the "under sentence of imprisonment" in violation of the eighth amendment requirements set forth in Maynard v. Cartwrinht, supra, and Hitchcock v. Dugger, supra, which are changes in the law.

XV. The sentencing proceeding here, was tainted by the impermissible use of victim impact evidence in violation of <u>Booth v. Maryland</u>, 107 s. Ct. 2529 (1987), and <u>South Carolina v. Gathers</u>, 109 s. Ct. 2207 (1989), new case law.

XVI. The jury was misled concerning its role in the sentencing of Mr. Roberts in violation of the eighth amendment new precedent established by Hitchcock v.
Dugger, supra, and Caldwellv. Mississippi, 105 S. Ct. 2633 (1985).

XVII. Nonstatutory aggravating circumstances were presented to Mr. Roberts' jury and proper instructions were not given to disregard this argument as required by Maynard v. Cartwrinht, supra, and Hitchcock v. Dugger, supra.

XVIII. Mr. Roberts was denied a fair trial and sentencing as a result of the prosecutor's improper arguments which contained vindictive and personal attacks on Mr. Roberts.

XIX. The trial court erred when it improperly limited Mr. Roberts' mental health expert's testimony in violation of <u>Pentry v. Lynaugh</u>, <u>supra</u>, new case law.

XX. Mr. Roberts was denied the effective assistance of counsel when his attorney withdrew because he was a material witness to an inconsistent statement by a State's witness. **The** attorney was in fact not subsequently called as a witness,

XXI. Mr. Roberts was deprived of his right to a jury not picked on a racial basis.

XXII. By virtue of Rule 3.851 of the Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure, Mr. Roberts was deprived of his right to a full and fair opportunity to present his claim.

XXIII. Mr. Roberts' sentence of death rests upon an unconstitutionally obtained prior conviction.

ARGUMENT I

OLDEN V. KENTUCKY IS NEW CASE LAW WHICH ESTABLISHES THAT MR. ROBERTS WAS DEPRIVED OF HIS RIGHT TO CONFIONT WITNESSES AGAINST HIM WHEN THE TRIAL COURT PROHIBITED CROSS-EXAMINATION OF THE STATE'S WITNESS, MICHELLE RIMONDI, REGARDING HER WORK AS A PROSTITUTE AND HOW THAT LED TO THE VICTIM'S DEATH.

Michelle Rimondi was a prostitute at the time George Napoles was killed. She testified for the State and claimed that while she and Mr. Napoles were parked on Key Biscayne Boulevard at about 3:00 a.m., Mr. Roberts killed Mr. Napoles and raped Ms. Rimondi. The defense argued that Ms. Rimondi and either one or both of her male friends, Manny Cebey and Joe Ward, killed Mr. Napoles. The defense was not allowed to cross-examine Mr. Rimondi or her male friends, Mr. Cebey or Mr. Ward, regarding her employment as a prostitute or the protection they provided her and her business. The defense was not able to present what it obviously believed was the motive for the killing, a "trick" gone awry.

The State's Response to the Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus which the State presented to the circuit court at the October 25, 1989, hearing for consideration (T. 359). concedes much of this:

In his opening statement and closing argument, defense counsel theorized that either the rape victim's boyfriend, Manuel Cebey, or Joe Gary Ward, at whose house the rape victim and Jamie Campbell were staying that weekend, had murdered the victim because they were jealous of his being with the rape victim that evening, and that the rape victim blamed the defendant to protect either one or both of them.

Response at 13-14. However, counsel argued jealousy was the motive only because he was precluded from developing the real motive for the murder, Ms. Rimondi's prostitution. Defense counsel, as the State concedes, presented evidence that "Ward was a violent man who sometimes carried a firearm (T. 1595-1600)." Response at 30. "Michelle Rimondi, also testified that Ward had a bad temper and was a violent person (T. 2269)." Response at 30. However, the defense was unable to provide the

jury with the information necessary to complete the picture; Ms. Rimondi was a prostitute who Mr. Cebey and Mr. Ward protected, that was why she associated with these violent men.

The jury did not know of Ms. Rimondi's prostitution in evaluating her testimony as to why she was in a strange man's car at 3:00 a.m. on Key Biscayne Boulevard.

Ms. Rimondi did not know Mr. Napoles. She had just met him. They were "partying" together. Obviously, cross-examination should have been allowed to develop that Mr. Napoles was a "john." Defense counsel should have been able to confront Ms. Rimondi with her prostitution and whether Mr. Napoles got out of line and was killed by either herself, Mr. Ward or Mr. Cebey. In evaluating her story, the jury needed to know the very relevant fact that Ms. Rimondi was a prostitute who was a turning a "trick" when the homicide occurred.

The defendant's rights to present a defense and to confront and cross-examine the witnesses against him are fundamental safeguards "essential to a fair trial in a criminal prosecution." Pointer v. Texas, 380 U.S. 403, 404 (1965). Mr. Roberts was denied his rights to present a defense, to confront and cross-examine the witnesses against him, when trial counsel was precluded from questioning Michelle Rimondi about her history of prostitution. Prior to trial, the State's motion in limine to preclude testimony about Michelle Rimondi's sexual history, was granted by the trial court (R. 661). Obviously, it was critical to the defense to fully explore Ms. Rimondi's credibility and to effectively impeach her testimony before the jury. However, effective cross-examination was never permitted since the trial court ruled that the Rape Shield Law prohibited inquiry into Michelle Rimondi's sexual history. The court found that evidence of specific acts and Michelle Rimondi's sexual history were not admissible since consent was not at issue.' This Court on appeal affirmed,

^{&#}x27;However, the court ignored the provision in the Rape Shield Law which allows the admission of this kind of evidence in order to explain the presence of sperm in a sexual assault victim Fla. Stat. sec. 794.022(2), which was an issue.

finding no violation of Mr. Roberts' confrontation rights because of the "highly prejudicial aspect" of Ms. Rimondi's sexual history.

Since Mr. Roberts' trial, new case law has developed which establishes the error here and justifies presentation of this issue in a Rule 3.850 motion or petition for habeas corpus relief. This Court has held that where new precedent from the United States Supreme Court establishes that error occurred in a criminal prosecution, the defendant may present a claim premised upon the new precedent in a state collateral proceeding. Jackson v. Dunner, 547 So. 2d 1197 (Fla. 1989). State courts will entertain and decide such claims if the new precedent constitutes a change in law. This Court has held that a decision from the United States Supreme Court is a change in law if it effectively overrules this Court's prior precedent. In Downs v. Dugger, 514 So. 2d 1069 (Fla. 1987), this Court recognized that Hitchcock v. Dugger, 107 S. Ct. 1821 (1987). explicitly overturned this Court's prior precedent and thus constituted a change in law cognizable in collateral proceedings. In Jackson v. Dugger, 547 So. 2d 1198-99, this Court recognized that Booth v. Maryland, 107 S. Ct. 2529 (1987), effectively overturned the prior decision on direct appeal in Ms. Jackson's case. See Jackson v. State, 498 So. 2d 406 (Fla. 1986). Here in Mr. Roberts' case, the question is whether Olden v. Kentucky, 109 s. Ct. 480 (1989), effectively overrules this Court's decision affirming on direct appeal.²

In Olden v. Kentucky, 109 s. Ct. at 483, the Supreme Court was presented with case where the Kentucky courts, pursuant to a Rape Shield Law, had refused to allow cross-examination of an alleged rape victim regarding her sexual history. In

²Of course the rationale for recognizing United States Supreme Court's decisions, which effectively overrule decisions of this Court, as cognizable in collateral proceedings, is that the State courts have on obligation under the constitution to correct obvious constitutional error. There is no reason to force the defendant into federal court in order to obtain the relief to which he is entitled. In fact the delay involved in federal litigation will only prejudice both parties at the inevitable retrial.

reversing the Supreme Court stated:

In <u>Davis v. Alaska</u>, we observed that, subject to "the broad discretion of a trial judge to preclude repetitive and unduly harassing interrogation ..., the cross-examiner has traditionally been allowed to impeach, i.e., discredit, the witness." Id., at 316, 94 \$.Ct., at 1110. We emphasized that "the exposure of a witness' motivation in testifying is a proper and important function of the constitutionally protected right of cross-examination." Id., at 316-317, 94 \$.0t, at 1110, citing Greene v. McElroy, 360 U.S. 474, 496, 79 S.Ct. 1400, 1413, 3 L.Ed. 2d 1377 (1959). Recently, in Delaware v. Van Arsdall, 475 U.S. 673, 106 S.Ct. 1431, 89 L. Ed. 2d 674 (1986). we reaffirmed Davis, and held that "a criminal defendant states a violation of the Confrontation Clause by showing that he was prohibited from engaging in otherwise appropriate cross-examination designed to show a prototypical from of bias on the part of the witness, and thereby 'to expose to the jury the facts from which jurors ... could appropriately draw inferences relating to the reliability of the witness." 475 U.S., at 680, 106 \$.0t., at 1436, quoting <u>Davis</u>, <u>supra</u>, **415 U.S.**, at **318, 94** \$.Gt., at 1111.

In the instant case, petitioner has consistently asserted that he and Matthews engaged in consensual sexual acts and that Matthews--out of fear of jeopardizing her relationship with Russell--lied when she told Russell she had been raped and has continued to lie since. It is plain to us that "[a] reasonable jury might have received a significantly different impression of [the witnesses'] credibility had [defense counsel] been permitted to pursue his proposed line of cross-examination." Delaware v. Van Arsdall, supra, 475 U.S., at 680, 106 \$.Gt., at 1436.

The Kentucky Court of Appeals justified the limitation of the cross-examination on the basis of the prejudice to the alleged victim, Matthews. "[T]he court held that petitioner's right to effective cross-examination was outweighed by the danger that revealing Matthews' interracial relationship would prejudice the jury against her." Olden, 109 S. Ct. at 483. However, the Supreme Court noted that Matthews, the alleged victim, gave testimony that "was central, indeed crucial, to the prosecution's case," Id. at 484. Her testimony was directly contradicted by the defendant's testimony. As a result, evidence going towards her motives to lie and testify against the defendant could not be excluded on the basis of "[s]peculation as to the effect of jurors'... biases." Id. at 483.

Here as in <u>Olden</u>, the State's case was premised upon the testimony of the alleged sexual assault victim. The defense, here as in <u>Olden</u>, claimed the victim was lying. Here as in <u>Olden</u>, the defense sought to impeach the alleged victim by

introducing evidence of her sexual history in order to establish why she would be lying when fingering the defendant as the assailant. Here, as in Olden, the defense also wanted to cross-examine the witness about the matter in order to corroborate portions of the defendant's **own** testimony. Here as in Olden, the evidence was excluded because of potential prejudice to the alleged victim. On direct appeal, the Court found the excluded evidence "highly prejudicial." Roberts v. State, 510 So. 2d 885, 892 (Fla. 1987).

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