IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 74,920

RICKEY BERNARD ROBERTS,



Appellant,

DEC 8 1989

CLERK, SUPREME COURT By_____ Deputy Clerk

VS .

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA CRIMINAL DIVISION

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

RALPH **BARREIRA** Florida Bar No. 0374490 Assistant Attorney General Department *of* Legal Affairs 401 N. W. 2nd Avenue, Suite N921 Miami, Florida 33128 (305) 377-5441

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

Another interesting point is that defendant's initial counsel, Thomas Scott, had filed a witness list containing the names of the defendant's mother, Josie Mae Robinson, his uncle, George Roberts, his aunt, Gertrude McKenzie, and uncle, Wallace Roberts (T.R. 147).

It is clear from the above that an investigation was undertaken, and that the experts relied on the fruits of that investigation. Defense counsel's choice of who to call at sentencing was not made in a vacuum of ignorance, as the defendant now alleges. Counsel may well have concluded that

-30-

reliance on family members, who had an obvious interest in the outcome, would be less effective than reliance on disinterested experts, from whom he elicited testimony supporting two statutory mitigating factors. It can always be said, after the fact, that counsel could have done more, that an even more compelling presentation could have been made, especially with the luxury of time. That is not the issue. The issue is whether counsel made a strategic decision, following adequate investigation, to pursue a certain course. This is not a case where the defendant was left defenseless at the sentencing Defense counsel had to explain not only how the phase. defendant could have committed this brutal rape murder, but the Maryland rape/attempted murder as well. Counsel decided the best way was to show the defendant possessed a defective brain, from the outset, which caused sudden explosions of violence totally beyond his ability to control. Counsel vigorously pursued this path, and the fact that five jurors voted for life is a testament to his diligent efforts.

CLAIM VI

THE TRIAL COURT'S SUMMARY DENIAL OF THE DEFENDANT'S INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL, AT THE GUILT PHASE, WAS PROPER.

This claim, found at pages 62-66 of the defendant's brief, was rejected by the trial court without comment. The State argued that this claim was totally insufficient under Kennedy v. State, 547 So, 2d 912 (Fla. 1989); see also Knight v. State, 394 So,2d 997 (Fla. 1987), because the allegations lack the required degree of specificity, and indeed any specificity whatever. As will be demonstrated, the state's argument was totally justified, and in addition the factual allegations, vague though they be, are nevertheless conclusively refuted by record. Agan v. State, 503 So,2d 1254 (Fla. 1987).

At page 62 of his brief the defendant states:

impeach Counsel needed to the witness the State built its case upon -- Michelle Rimondi. A wealth of impeaching evidence was available Counsel failed to but never used. effectively the available use impeachment evidence to crossexamine Ms. Rimondi.

These are the same conclusory allegations contained in the motion to vacate (R.90,91). The allegations totally lack any factual foundation. Rimondi was in fact vigorously cross-

-32-

examined by counsel, and the defendant has failed to allege any matter not pursued by defense counsel at trial.

the bottom of page 62 of his brief, the defendant At alleges that counsel failed to cross-examine "State's witnesses" about "exposure to criminal charges unless they cooperated with the State." The defendant identifies neither the witnesses, their pending charges, or any other factual matter relating to this vague allegation. The defendant refers to claim X of his motion to vacate (R.93-95), which deals with prior counsel's withdrawal based on the changed testimony of witness Rhonda Haines. If indeed Rhonda Haines is the "State's witness" the defendant is referring to, the State would point out that Rhonda Haines was vigorously cross-examined by defense counsel concerning her open warrants for prostitution in Broward County, and whether she expected special treatment because of her testimony (T.R. 2435-2440). In sum, this allegation is likewise facially deficient, as well as being refuted by the record.

The rest of the allegations contained in the defendant's motion to vacate (R.90, 91) are also conclusory in nature wholly unsupported by specific facts, with the possible exception of paragraphs 11 (R.90) and 13 (R.91), which allege in essence that defense counsel should have presented a voluntary intoxication defense, rather than a "I didn't do it" defense. Even if the lack of specific factual allegations is ignored, counsel's

-33-

determination to pursue this latter defense, rather than the ever so unpopular with juries voluntary intoxication defense (which was totally refuted by numerous witnesses who testified the defendant was acting in a coherent, rational manner during the entire relevant time period) was clearly **a** strategic decision not subject to an ineffective assistance challenge under <u>Strickland v. Washington</u>, **466** U.S. **668**, **104** S.Ct. 2052, **80** L.Ed.2d **674** (**1984**).

The remaining point raised by the defendant in his brief, at the bottom of page 65, is that rulings by the trial court prevented trial counsel from presenting relevant testimony and cross-examination. Aside from the fact that the defendant provides no specifics whatever, the "claim" itself simply does not exist. If the trial court made adverse rulings at trial, they could and should be raised on direct appeal.

In conclusion, the defendant's allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel, at the guilt phase, are all facially deficient and/or conclusively refuted by record, and the trial court's summary denial of this claim should thus be affirmed.

CLAIM VII

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY RULED THAT THE DEFENDANT'S DAVIS V. ALASKA CLAIMS WERE PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

-34-

At trial defense counsel sought to cross-examine several State witnesses regarding their criminal histories, and in several instances he was precluded from doing so on the basis that no convictions were ever obtained. This issue clearly could and should have been raised on direct appeal, <u>Kennedy v.</u> <u>State and Maxwell v. Wainwright</u>, <u>supra</u>, and indeed the defendant has raised appellate counsel's failure to do so as an issue (IV) in his pending habeas corpus petition. For the State's arguments on the merits, see State's response at pages **21-30**. This issue **is** definitely not cognizable in the instant proceeding.

CLAIM VIII

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY RULED THAT THE DEFENDANT'S "ALIAS" CLAIM WAS PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

This issue could and should have been raised on direct appeal, and the defendant has raised appellate counsel's failure to do so in his habeas petition (111). The State's argument on the merits is at pages **18-20** of its response.

CLAIM IX

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY RULED THAT THE ISSUE OF THE TRIAL COURT'S ALLEGED REFUSAL TO CONSIDER MENTAL HEALTH MITIGATING EVIDENCE WAS PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

-35-

On direct appeal the defendant contested the trial court's refusal to find the two statutory mental health mitigating factors, a refusal which this Court upheld. <u>Roberts v. State</u>, 510 So.2d 885 at 894, 895 (Fla. 1987). He now alleges that the trial court erred in not considering his mental health evidence as nonstatutory mitigating evidence, in supposed violation of <u>Lockett v. Ohio</u>, 438 U.S. 586, 98 S.Ct. 2954, 57 L.Ed.2d 973 (1978). This claim obviously could and should have been raised on direct appeal, and in his habeas petition (XIV) the defendant again alleges appellate counsel was ineffective for not raising this issue on appeal. The State's argument on the merits is at pages 48, 49 of its response.

CLAIM X

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY RULED THAT THE DEFENDANT'S <u>MAYNARD V.</u> <u>CARTWRIGHT</u> CLAIM WAS PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

Aside from the fact that this Court has held <u>Maynard v.</u> <u>Cartwright</u>, 486 U.S. ____, 108 S.Ct. 1853, 100 L.Ed.2d 372 (1988) to be inapplicable to Florida's sentencing scheme, <u>Smalley v.</u> <u>State</u>, 14 F.L.W. 342 (Fla. July 6th, 1989), as has the Eleventh Circuit, <u>Bertolotti v. Duqqer</u>, 3 F.L.W. Fed. C1281 (11th Cir. August 31st, 1989), there was no objection to the HAC instruction at trial and the issue was not raised on direct

-36-

appeal. The claim is thus procedurally barred. <u>Adams v. State</u> 543 So.2d 1244, 1249 (Fla. 1989) and <u>Atkins v. State</u>, 541 So.2d 1165, 1166 (Fla. 1989).

CLAIM XI

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY RULED THAT THE DEFENDANT'S BURDEN SHIFTING CLAIM REGARDING THE PENALTY PHASE INSTRUCTIONS WAS PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

This claim, aside from being waived by trial counsel's failure to object to the instruction, is a claim which could and should have been raised on direct appeal, and thus is procedurally barred in this proceeding. The defendant has raised this identical claim in his habeas petition (IX), and in its response (page 45) the State noted that this identical claim has been rejected on the merits by the Eleventh Circuit in Bertolotti, supra, at C1289, C1290.

CLAIM XII

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY RULED THAT THE DEFENDANT'S "FAILURE TO INSTRUCT ON MERCY" CLAIM WAS PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

Aside from the fact that defendant's trial counsel never requested an instruction on "the jury's ability to recommend mercy because of sympathy evoked by the evidence in mitigation"

-37-

(defendant's brief at page 83), this issue was one which should have been raised on direct appeal, and thus is not cognizable herein. The defendant raised this issue in his habeas petition (X), and as the State noted in its response (page 46, 47), an identical claim was rejected by the Eleventh Circuit in <u>Julius</u> <u>v. Jones</u>, 3 F.L.W. Fed. C763 (11th Cir. May 31st, 1989).

CLAIM XIII

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY RULED THAT THE DEFENDANT'S CLAIM, AS TO THE INSTRUCTION ON THE "IN THE COURSE OF A FELONY" AGGRAVATING FACTOR, WAS PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

This claim is, quite frankly, incomprehensible to the The issue of whether this aggravating factor was State. properly found was raised and decided on directed appeal. Roberts v. State, supra at 894. The defendant refers in his brief (page 85) to claim XVIII of his motion to vacate (R,155-162), which argues that a conviction for felony-murder results in an impermissibly automatic aggravating factor being found ("in the course of a felony"). This claim is also raised in the defendant's habeas corpus petition (XIII), and as the State pointed out in its response, this claim has repeatedly been rejected by this Court, and more recently by the Eleventh Circuit in Bertolotti, supra, at C1291. This issue was not preserved at trial, and in any event it is one which must be raised on direct appeal, and is thus procedurally barred.

-38-

CLAIM XIV

THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY FOUND THAT THE DEFENDANT'S CLAIM, AS TO THE INSTRUCTION ON THE "UNDER SENTENCE OF IMPRISONMENT" AGGRAVATING FACTOR, WAS PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

As the State noted in its habeas response (XII, pages 47, 48), the defendant's trial counsel did not object to this instruction, nor request an instruction that committing the murder on parole was entitled to less weight, in aggravation, than committing the murder after a jailbreak. Indeed, counsel conceded that this aggravating factor applied. For present purposes it is enough to say that this issue is one which must be raised on direct appeal, and thus is procedurally barred.

CLAIM XV

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY DETERMINED THAT THE DEFENDANT'S <u>BOOTH V.</u> <u>MARYLAND</u> CLAIM WAS PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

This issue was not preserved by objection, as the defendant acknowledges in his brief at page 86, not was it raised on direct appeal, and thus the issue is procedurally barred vis-avis Rule 3.850. <u>Adams v. State</u>, 543 So.2d 1244 (Fla. 1989); <u>Eutzy v. State</u>, 541 So.2d 1143 (Fla. 1989), and <u>Grossman v.</u>

-39-

State, 525 So.2d 833 (Fla. 1988), cert. denied, 109 S.Ct. 1354 (1989). Jackson v. Duqqer, 547 So.2d 1197 (Fla. 1989), does not aid petitioner, because in Jackson the defendant objected at trial and raised the issue on direct appeal, thus Jackson suffered no procedural default. <u>See Parker v. State</u>, 14 F.L.W. 557, 558 (Fla. October 25, 1989). This issue was also raised by the defendant in his habeas petition (VII), and for a discussion of the facts relevant to the claim, see the State's response at pages 40-44.

CLAIM XVI

THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY HELD THAT THE DEFENDANT'S <u>CALDWELL V.</u> <u>MISSISSIPPI</u> CLAIM WAS PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

As the State noted in its habeas response (XI, page 47), none of the comments of the prosecutor or instructions of the trial court regarding the jurors role at sentencing, were objected to. Additionally, this is an issue which must be raised on direct appeal. <u>See Dugger v. Adams</u>, 489 U.S. ___, 109 S.Ct. ___, 3 F.L.W. Fed. S105 (February 28, 1989), and innumeral cases from this Court cited therein, as well as <u>Bertolotti</u>, <u>supra</u>, at C1287.

CLAIM XVII

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY RULED THAT THE DEFENDANT'S CLAIM, THAT THE JURY WAS NOT ACCURATELY ADVISED THAT IT COULD CONSIDER ONLY THE STATUTORY AGGRAVATING FACTORS, WAS PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

The defendant did not object to the penalty phase instruction or request any special instruction in this regard. In any event this is an issue which must be raised on direct appeal and hence is procedurally barred herein. In his habeas petition (XVI) the defendant claims that the State argued to the jury, and the trial court relied upon nonstatutory aggravating factors. For a discussion of the facts relating to this barred claim, see the State's response at pages 50-56.

CLAIM XVIII

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY FOUND THAT THE DEFENDANT'S CLAIM OF IMPROPER PROSECUTORIAL COMMENTS WAS PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

This issue clearly is one which must be raised on direct appeal, and this is procedurally barred. As the State pointed out in its habeas response (VI, pages 38-40), none of the comments were objected to and **thus the issue was** not preserved for appellate review in any event.

CLAIM XIX

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY RULED THAT DEFENDANT'S CLAIM, THE THAT THE TESTIMONY OF ONE OF HIS MENTAL HEALTH EXPERTS WAS IMPROPERLY RESTRICTED, WAS PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

This claim was preserved at trial, and hence could and should have been raised on direct appeal, and the defendant has in fact raised appellate counsel's failure to do *so* in his habeas petition (XV), with the State's argument at pages **49**, 50 of its response. The issue is obviously barred herein.

CLAIM XX

THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY FOUND THAT THE DEFENDANT'S CLAIM, THAT HIS INITIAL COUNSEL IMPROPERLY WITHDREW BASED ON CONFLICT OF INTEREST, WAS PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

The "issue" of Thomas Scott's withdrawal as counsel could and should have been raised on appeal, and hence is procedurally barred. Actually, it should never have been raised because it is ridiculous. Mr. Scott felt an ethical obligation to withdraw, and he properly did *so*. If this claim is viewed as one of ineffective assistance of trial counsel, it is totally specious, as Mr. Scott was not the defendant's trial counsel, and although actions of a prior counsel could conceivably violate <u>Strickland v. Washinqton</u>, <u>supra</u>, nothing has been alleged by the defendant which would even remotely support such a finding in this case.

CLAIM XXI

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY RULED THAT THE DEFENDANT'S <u>NEIL</u>/ <u>SLAPPY</u>/ <u>BATSON</u> CLAIM WAS PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

This claim was preserved at trial and could and should have been raised on direct appeal, and is thus procedurally barred. The defendant has raised appellate counsel's failure to present the issue on direct appeal as claim V, in his habeas petition, with the State's argument at pages **31-38** of its response.

CLAIM XXII

THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY HELD THAT THE DEFENDANT'S "I DIDN'T GET MY FULL TWO YEARS" CLAIM TO BE WITHOUT MERIT.

This Court has already found this claim to be meritless. Cave v. State, 529 So,2d 293 (Fla. 1988).

CLAIM XXIII

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY FOUND THAT THE DEFENDANT'S CLAIM, THAT THE JUDGE AND JURY RELIED ON AN UNCONSTITUTIONALLY OBTAINED PRIOR CONVICTION, WAS PROCEDURALLY BARRED. This issue was not preserved at trial, but in any event it is one which must be raised on direct appeal, and hence is procedurally barred. To the extent that the defendant alleges trial counsel was ineffective for failing to successfully collaterally attack the 1974 Maryland rape/attempted murder conviction prior to trial, the State would respond in two ways. First, the defendant has specified no facts supporting his allegation that the Maryland conviction was unconstitutional. In his brief (pages 93, 94) the defendant states no grounds for collateral attack. In his motion to vacate (R.172), he states in essence "Just give me some time, I'll come up with something." This is a blatant violation of <u>Kennedy</u>, <u>supra</u>, hence the claim was properly summarily denied.

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